PROJECT RESULT 2

Block Programming Tool Development for Low-cost IoT Electronics: Facilino

Abstract

This document describes project result 2 of EcoThings project where we have developed block programming tools aimed to be used for low-cost IoT Electronics. In particular, in this document, we will describe activities related to the development of Facilino, a block programming tool based on Blockly that is used to generate code for low-cost electronics such as Arduino, Raspberry Pi and ESP32.

> Leopoldo Armesto Ángel Universitat Politécnica de Valencia larmesto@idf.upv.es





Contents

1.	Introduction	2
a.	Background and Motivation	2
b.	Highlights	2
2.	Main Results	4
a.	Old Facilino version versus Facilino OTA	4
b.	Open source and free software	4
c.	Front-end and Back-end	4
d.	User's account	5
e.	Project's dashboard	8
f.	Facilino OTA Server	12
g.	Block simplification and feature extension	19
h.	Block filters	20
i.	Tutorial and Project-related Exercises	21
j.	Translation tool	26
k.	Over-the-air (OTA)	27
I.	Documentation	27
Refe	rences	28





Block programming tools are one of the most powerful tools that educators have in their hands to teach programming skills to pupils. Based on their simplicity for connecting blocks together, they can cope with complex code generation. Blockly [1] is, probably, the most widely used tool to develop block programming software. It is basically divided into two aspects, the block shape generator and the code generator. In this sense, Facilino is a software that uses Blockly to generate code for low-cost electronics such as Arduino, Raspberry Pi and ESP32.

a. Background and Motivation

Facilino [2], was originally developed by Leopoldo Armesto (UPV) in a collaboration with a local SME, Robotica Fácil [3], to provide solutions for schools so the can integrate different kind of STEAM activities within their curricula. From the beginning, Facilino has shown interest in their community. Originally, the software was planned as a free-ware software, as part of the agreement for development. Therefore, many blocks were free to use, but others, require a license.

Taking Facilino as a basis and considering that the old version of Facilino was not maintained anymore (last published release is dated on end of 2019), we consider that EcoThings project brings a great opportunity to retake the development under a completely different approach. For obvious reasons, we have kept the original software name, trademark and logo, but now it's development is fully maintained by the UPV. Indeed, this approach has shown to have an impact on the community because some people already use Facilino and thus the new version sound familiar to them and thus showed interest in learning more about this new version of Facilino. Due to the previous collaboration with Robótica Facil, we could reach a sector that was precisely of interest of this project. When presenting the new version we referred to EcoThings project.

b. Highlights

During the project execution, we have made a big effort in readapting many aspects:

- **Hosting**: The new version is hosted at the UPV servers, and it will be maintained by the UPV.
- Totally free software: All blocks can be now used for free.
- Front-end & back-end development: Facilino works now with a front-end based on HTML and Javascript (in the client side), while it runs PHP and MySQL in the server side.
- **User's account**: We have included a simple account log in, registration, password recovery and user's profile.
- **Project's dashboard**: Users can manage their own projects, once logged in.





- Facilino OTA Server: This tool allows Facilino to compile code and upload it to the electronics. The main advantage, compare to the previous version is that now, all dependencies of the code generated by Facilino are now integrated in a single tool.
- Block simplification and feature extension: Some original blocks of Facilino have been simplified and in some cases. Also, we have developed new blocks that have considered relevant to boost code development those related with EcoThings project. Blockly includes the possibility to generate shadow blocks, which is a great utility to generate default inputs for a specific block instruction, so that users can quickly find out how to use a instruction without the need of reading documentation about it.
- Block filters: The set of block instructions of Facilino has become large, which might be confusing for non-experienced users. For that reason, we have included block filters that will show blocks that can be typically used for a specific project type. In particular, EcoThings project has its own block filter, which means that most of the blocks that one can expect to use within EcoThings proposals, will be shown by default and the rest will be hidden.
- Tutorial and Project-related exercises: Based on previous Tutorial exercises, the new version of Facilino includes a set of tutorials to start coding. In the majority of these tutorials and exercises, we propose connection diagrams and alternative approaches that can be used too. We provide a problem description, hints, Facilino code and a ThinkerCAD project embedded in the tutorial so that the proposed exercise can be executed in a simulated environment, without need of physical electronics. Similarly, we have just started documenting some specific exercises that are related with some projects such a LED race or low-cost robotics platforms. We have also started documenting the kind of exercises that can be used within the EcoThings project.
- **Translation tool**: The new version of Facilino includes an easy-to-use translation tool that aims to translate Facilino into multiple languages. So far, we have translated Facilino into Spanish and other languages such as Catalonian, German, Italian, French and Portuguese have been Google translated and are currently under review.
- Over-the-Air (OTA): The new version of Facilino, includes a feature that allows to program micro controller such as ESP8266 or ESP32 using an over-the-air feature. In combination of Facilino OTA Server, a user can compile and upload code to a specific device via WiFi, without need of physical USB cable. This represents a great advantage for schools using tables or iPADs in their lab sessions.
- **Documentation**: This is a working progress feature, and it will be implemented in a mid-term period (by the end of the project, if possible). The idea is to show specific examples of how to use instructions. In PR4, we will particularly generate graphic documentation on how to code with Facilino within EcoThings project.







a. Old Facilino version versus Facilino OTA

Facilino is hosted at: <u>https://facilino.webs.upv.es/</u>

This host will be maintained by the UPV even when the project is finished, with the purpose of providing access to anyone who wants to use this tool.

b. Open source and free software

Facilino, also known as Facilino OTA, has been published as an open source software under Apache 2.0 license. The new version of facilino is totally free, which means that we have reimplemented the underlying code for those blocks so that now all of them generated code at no cost.

The code has been published on GitHub (using the original account, but on a new repository):

https://github.com/roboticafacil/facilino_ota

Together with Facilino OTA, users must install Facilino OTA Server, another open source tool that is hosted at:

https://github.com/roboticafacil/facilino ota server

We have created a first release, with binary files for Windows and Ubuntu (also works in LliureX).

c. Front-end and Back-end

Facilino uses a frontend/backend architecture, which means that when the user loads Facilino web page, this page is served by a server running PHP. The server generated HTML and javascript code that the client (frontend) renders into a web page. The server make queries to a database using MySQL.



HTML & Javascript

PHP & MySQL

In addition to this, it is interesting to understand how Facilino generates code to be uploaded on electronics.



d. User's account

In order to use Facilino, users must create an account. When not logged in, a red box informs the user that needs to login in order to code. Login can be done by clicking on the top right icon at the menu bar.







If a user has an account, it can simply log in to start coding, otherwise, the user will need to create an account to as indicated in the login page.



Registration page, ask for few personal data and language preference (currently only english and spanish):





Regis	stration
Username	
Grad	
P+0	
Proc Pole test	
1 and how we	
Languager	inglish +
Stapitor	
Already regi	Terred? Login teen
About	as Privsky pokcy
1423424	v f
© Copyright 2016 Universitat	Publicences de Valencia - Al Righta Reserved

Users can recover their password if they do not remember and they will receive an email with a link to reset their password:

	<u>n</u> (s
Lost Password?	
Loot Hubbirola	
Samuran Qurul Lim	
Flazert Pleasered	
Not registered yet? Register nore Login Login Ferm	
Abeut un Privacy policy ST É © Conyright 2016 Universitat Prétornica de Valencia - Ali Highto Resensed	
Lost Password	10 M
Alternational base service part with battackers of here to mant part gamment	
dikanal dan 🛛 Perjepang panting 1997 – P B. Dappeligid 2014 Second and Perfektions – Ad Perjets, Second	
From Facility recently facilitation prove 0 To the summary facilitation for some 0 Instant Facility Facility Facility	
Dearuner,	
Please click on the following link to reset your password,	
https://facilino.webs.am.es/reset.assoword.aho/kev=d285#19824cbbb14aestb80act004161f13#5eg&email-leo.armetro.aneti#amail.com&action=reset	
Please be vare to copy the entire link into your browser. The link will expire after 1 day for safety reason.	
If you did not request this forgotten password email, no action is needed, your password will not be reset. However, you may want to log into your account and change your password as someone may have	guessed it.
Thanks	
Facilino Team	





		R.18
	Reset Password	
	Autor New Pastwork	
	Re-Enter New Password.	
	Reprint Processor	
	Alwart un Privace police	
	C Dayying C 21% Maynesist Pullovinus in Veteral - 310 girls from and	
ŵ		e e
Compatibilitiend Year password has been updated successfully.		
	Allocat us. Privacy pating:	

Once logged in, they can access to their user profile to update their name of language preferences. User's can also apply for an account upgrade in which the can participate in the Translation program or Academy program. These two programs are described below so that users can contribute to the development of Facilino.

🚡 User Profile		(田田市)(田田)
When Date		
100000	The phone.	
Prof.	the strategy management in a	
1000 Republic Space	Amount of the second seco	
and the second se	Loganthe	
	Annan	
larger -	Broat Cases	
tunin com		
Service and Service and Pages		
Republication Communities Name		
	About as Privacy pulloy	
	3	
	Copyright 2016 interested Pathering on Antonion Ad Super-Summed	
-		

e. Project's dashboard

User's can create projects that will be included in their project's dashboard. So far, this is a simple dashboard where all users' projects are listed and they can duplicate a project, delete, edit, download code, etc... We are considering to include a search/filtering tool so that when users start have a big amount of projects, can be easily found.



To create a project, users must click on "New Project" link and a form with all possible options will be shown.

	Reev	Parities Terror	Rect Personalities (int	Terminan .
Tani .	And an a second second	Assessed The	Tanka begait	Digital -
L bellinge				
tive T		Tanto IT		

.....

Users must provide a project's name, select the board they plan to use, Facilino's version, the block instruction set as well as the language. All these options can be modified later once the project is created. They can also select the Server IP and the Device IP for Facilino OTA settings.

Facilino generates Arduino code for multiple type of boards. It works with several Arduino processors such as Arduino Uno; Espressif boards such as ESP8266 and ESP32 and Raspberry Pi. Facilino blocks instructions are identical in most cases, while the generate code adapted to the specific board, which greatly abstracts many issues related to hardware abstraction compared to classic text coding. So far, we have included a subset of boards, but this can be extended in the future to include new ones:







TTGO Smart watch





While Facilino is a code generation tool, the actual code will be uploaded to using Facilino OTA Server (see next section). This will will upload code either through USB, selecting **Facilino** version, or over the air selecting **Facilino OTA**. We have also created a simplified version of Facilino (using USB), named as **Facilino Junior** where most of the blocks have been adapted to a simpler way of use, while limiting obviously the full capacity of the tool if advanced instructions were used instead.



Finally, the user must select a Block Instruction set. The purpose of this selection is to filter some blocks that the user will not use depending on the type of project he/she intends to do. In that sense, the option by default is a generic project with the full set of instructions, while other projects such as robotic projects or EcoThings project will require a different kind of instructions. Thus, by selecting a specific project, some instructions will not be shown by default and therefore, it's easier for non-experienced users to find the instructions they need to user for their actual needs.







Generic Project

Complete instruction set with for all type of projects, Make your dreams become true with the full instruction set.



DYOR Robot

Block instruction set for low-cost Arduino-based wheeled robots to generate movements, sounds and expressions.



bPED Robot

Block instruction set for hipless walking robots like bPED to generate movements, sounds and expressions.



meArm Robot

Block instruction set for a robot arm with three serves and a gripper, it includes instructions to controlling the robot in several modes.



Multisensor Board

Block instruction set for using the multisensor shield. It includes instructions to learn how to read sensors or activate outputs with the multisensor board.



DIY Home Automation Kit

Block instruction set for environmental sensors used in home automation, intelligent greenhouse, weather station projects.



LED Race

Block instruction set for a LED race project. It includes the instructions focused on LED strips and pushbuttons.

f. Facilino OTA Server

You can download here Facilino OTA Server. Select the appropriate version for your OS.





1. Download Files

First, download Facilino OTA Server. Be advised that these downloads have been taken from Robotica Facil's GitHub, where you can find the source code of the application and old releases.

2. Facilino OTA Server Windows Installer

Click on the installer to execute it. Your computer might give a warning as the Installation comes from an unknown source. Simply, give permision under the extended tab option. The Facilino OTA Server is complety safe and does not pose a threat to your computer. Indeed, Facilino OTA Server actually is a port to the Facilino web page and Arduino-CLI. The web page generates code based on blocks, while Arduino CLI is the software that compiles your code so it is highly recommended to check that has been properly installed after the installation process finishes, including all boards and libraries required by Facilino, otherwise, compiling and uploading code might fail.

When executing Facilino OTA Server Installer, you should see the following window:

🐻 FacilinoOTAServer Setup		- 🗆 X
Choose Components Choose which features of Faci	inoOTAServer you want to install.	7 00
Check the components you wa install. Click Next to continue.	nt to install and uncheck the comp	onents you don't want to
Select components to install:	 ✓ Facilino OTA Server (required) ✓ Arduino CLI (required) ✓ Start Menu & Desktop Sho 	Description Position your mouse over a component to see its description.
Space required: 50.2 MB	< >	
Robotica Facil		
	C	Next > Cancel

Select the installation location, this is automatically set to your folder $C:\FacilinoOTAServer$. We recommend you not to change this path.

)	Co-funded by the Erasmus+ Programme of the European Union			
👸 FacilinoOTAServer Setup		- 0		
Choose Install Location		23		
Choose the folder in which to install FacilinoC	DTAServer.	႞ၮၟ		
Setup will install FacilinoOTAServer in the foll Browse and select another folder. Click Insta	lowing folder. To instal all to start the installati	l in a different folder, click on.		
Destination Folder		Browse		
Destination Folder C:\FacilinoOTAServer Space required: 50.2 MB		Browse		
Destination Folder C:\FacilinoOTAServer Space required: 50.2 MB Space available: 695.8 GB		Browse		
Destination Folder C:\FacilinoOTAServer Space required: 50.2 MB Space available: 695.8 GB Robotica Facil		Browse		

Then installation should start immediately and a progress bar should be visible. This installation might take a few minutes, particularly when installing Arduino libraries, because they will be first downloaded and then installed.

)	Co-funded by the Erasmus+ Programme of the European Union
📴 FacilinoOTAServer Setup	
Installation Complete	
Setup was completed successfully.	
Completed	
Show <u>d</u> etails	
Robotica Facil	

3. Facilino OTA Server Windows ZIP (for non-admin users)

Unzip Facilino OTA Server and *cd* to the unzipped folder and type *config.bat* in the command shell. You should see on the shell output all arduino-cli commands required by Facilino to be able to compile and upload code to the supported boards and libraries.

4. Facilino OTA Server on Ubuntu

Untar Facilino OTA Server and cd to the uncompressed folder and bash config.sh in the console. You should see on the shell output all arduino-cli commands required by Facilino to be able to compile and upload code to the supported boards and libraries.

5. Arduino CLI

Open the command shell and move to Facilino OTA Server directory (i.e.: *C:\FacilinoOTAServer*). Then, *cd* to *arduino-cli* folder and type *arduino-cli.exe core list* (on Windows) or *./arduino-cli core list* (on Ubuntu). You should see a list of supported boards:





C:\FacilinoOTAServer	r∖arduino-o	:li>ardu	uino-cli.exe core list
ID	Installed	Latest	Name
arduino:avr	1.8.6	1.8.6	Arduino AVR Boards
arduino:mbed_rp2040	3.5.4	3.5.4	Arduino Mbed OS RP2040 Boards
arduino:megaavr	1.8.8	1.8.8	Arduino megaAVR Boards
esp32:esp32	1.0.4	1.0.4	esp32
esp8266:esp8266	3.1.1	3.1.1	esp8266

If you type: arduino-cli.exe lib list you should see a list of installed libraries:

C:\FacilinoOTAServer\arduin	o-cli>ardu	ino-cli.ex	e lib list	
Name	Installed	Available	Location	Description
Adafruit_BMP085_Library	1.2.2		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Adafruit_BusIO	1.14.1		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Adafruit_GFX_Library	1.11.5		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Adafruit_NeoPixel	1.11.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Adafruit_SSD1306	2.5.7		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Adafruit_Unified_Sensor	1.1.7		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ArduinoHttpClient	0.4.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ArduinoJson	6.20.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ArduinoSTL	1.3.3		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
AsyncTCP	1.1.1	1.1.4	LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	Async TCP Library for ESP32
DallasTemperature	3.9.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
DFRobotDFPlayerMini	1.0.5		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
DHT_sensor_library	1.4.4		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
DHT_sensor_library_for_ESPx	1.18		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Dimmable_Light_for_Arduino	1.5.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
Dynamixel2Arduino	0.6.1	0.6.2	LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	DYNAMIXEL protocol Library for Arduino
ESP32_Servo	1.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ESP8266	1.0.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ESPAsyncTCP	1.2.2	1.2.4	LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	Async TCP Library for ESP8266 and ESP318
ESPAsyncWebServer	1.2.3		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ESPUI	2.2.1		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
FauxmoESP	3.4		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
IRremote	4.0.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
LiquidCrystal	1.0.7		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
LiquidCrystal_I2C	1.1.2		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
LittleFS_esp32	1.0.6		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
OneWire	2.3.7		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
PubSubClient	2.8		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	
ThingsBoard	0.9.0		LIBRARY_LOCATION_USER	

If any of the previous steps fails or during compilation of a program there's a missing library, you can install them manually (see arduino-cli's help by typing *arduino-cli.exe -h* on Windows or *./arduino-cli -h* on Ubuntu).

6. Running Facilino OTA Server

You can run Facilino OTA Server from the command shell by typing *FacilinoOTAServer.exe -e* on Windows or *./FacilinoOTAServer -e* on Ubuntu (you need to *cd* to Facilino installation folder).







C:\FacilinoOTAServer>FacilinoOTAServer.exe -e Using config file C:/FacilinoOTAServer/etc/FacilinoOTAServer.ini ServiceHelper: Starting service HttpListener: Listening on port 4000 Arduino-cli path: C:/FacilinoOTAServer/arduino-cli/arduino-cli.exe Logging to C:/FacilinoOTAServer/logs/FacilinoOTAServer.log

Every time your computer restarts or you close the command shell, you will need to manually execute Facilino OTA server so it can compile or upload code. This is OK if you are the only user using the computer, however, if more users are about to use Facilino (i.e. in a Lab room), in order to avoid copies of the same libraries for each user, the recommended method is to install a service that runs automatically at boot up.

IMPORANT: In order to run Facilino OTA Server as a service, it must be installed by the administrator of the machine and the service must be installed also by the same user. In that case, open a command shell with administrative permission and *cd* to Facilino OTA Server and type *FacilinoOTAServer.exe -i <user> <password>* on Windows or *sudo ./FacilinoOTAServer -i <user> <password>* on Ubuntu, where <user> and <password> denotes the system user and password of the computer with administrative permissions.



Now, start the service simply by executing the command *FacilinoOTAServer.exe* on Windows or *./FacilinoOTAServer* on Ubuntu. To stop the service, you can execute the command *FacilinoOTAServer.exe -t* on Windows or *./FacilinoOTAServer -t* on Ubuntu.



It is recommended to check the status of the service through the Windows service utility.

				Era: of th	smus+ P ne Europ	Programme bean Union	1.2		
Servicios	10 - MINS							- 0	t
rchive Acción V	For Ayuda								
Servicies (Incales)	Contraction and an								
	Selections on elements was on an	Nombre	Descripción	Estado	Tino de inicio	Inicial section comp.			
	descripción.	Contract of Constant Annual	- Description	Cardino	Manual	E-mana local			
	and the second second	Datos de contactos 22/22	warministrad		Advantage of	Satema local			
		Detección de hardware chall	Broonsciette	En electr	Automatica	Sistema local			
		Detection SSDP	Detecta dise	En ejecu	Marcoal	Senario local			
		DeviceAssociationBioker 93	Enables apr	en deco-	Adaptuied	Sistema local			
		DevicePicker 93c78	Este servicio		Manual	Sistema local			
		DevicesFlow 93c78	Permite que		Manual	fistems local			
		Disgnostic Execution Service	Executes dia		Marrual (dess	Sistema local			
		Directiva de extracción de t	Permite con		Marrust	Sistema local			
		Ch Disco virtual	Proporciona_		Manual	Sistema local			
		Dispositivo host de UPvP	Permite que		Marcual	Servicio local			
		DLL de host del Contador d	Habilita a lo-		Marrubi	Servicio focal			
		🔩 Energia	Administra I	En ejecu	Automático	Sistema local			
		Enrutamiento y acceso rem	Ofrece servi-		Deshabilitado	Sistema local			
		Estación de trabajo	Creary mant	En ejecu	Automático	Servicio de red			
		Eventos de adquisición de L.	Inicia aplica		Manual	Sistema local			
		Ch Examinador de equipos	Mantiene u	En ejecu	Mamual (dete	Sistema local			
		Experiencia de calidad de s	Experiencie	100	Marrual	Servicio local			
		Esperancias del usuario y t	El servicia E.,	En ejecu-	Automatico	Satama local			
		Excisione OTAServer	Web Server f	En ejecu	Automitico	Meg			
		The second se		1000	Internation .	company de red			
		Erewall de Windows Defen	Firewall de	En ejecu-	Automatico	Servicio local			
		Google Chrome Bevation S			Manual	Sistema local			
		Q Google Update Service (gup	Keeps your 🖂		Automético (i	Sistema local			
		Que Google Update Service (gup	Keeps your		Manual	Sistema local			
		GraphicsPerfSic	Graphics per		Manual (dese	Sistema local			
		Hore de la red de telefonia	Ede servicin		Manual (dese	Servicio Izcal			
		Hora de Windows	Martiseve is		Manual (dess	Servicio local			
		Host de proveedor de sletec	B servicio F.,	12032375	Marrual	Servicio local			
		With Host de sistema de diagnós	El Servicio d	En ejecu	Manual	Sistema local			
		Host del servicio de diagnó	El Servicio d	En ejecu	Manual Manual	Servicio local			
		ug identidad de aplicación	Determinary		Manual (dese.)	Servicio Iocal			
*	Extendido / Estándar/								

In Ubuntu, you can check if the service is running by executing the command *lsof* - *i*:4000.

COMMAND	PID	USER	FD	TYPE	DEVICE	SIZE/OFF	NODE	NAME	
Facilino0	37024	leo	5u	IPv6	141622	0t0	TCP	*:4000	(LISTEN)

7. Compile & Upload

Here, we assume that you have registed an account on Facilino web page, if not, please go to Register and complete the registration and log in.

Here, we assume that you have registed an account on Facilino web page, if not, please go to Register and complete the registration and log in.

To check if Facilino OTA can compile and upload code, create a blank project. Goto to the dashboard page Dashboard, click on New Project and select the desired processor among the list of available ones; select Facilino as *Facilino Version* and Generic Project *Block Instruction Set* and press *Create*.

Then, connect your board to the USB port and click on *Compile & Upload*. A window will show up with the generated code (so far since the project is empty, only setup and loop functions should appear). Select the board port in the dropdown list (if necessary press the *Refresh*) and board:



Then, verify that the code compiles by click on *Verify* and then if succeed upload the code by clicking on *Upload*.



Remark: Every time you change the code, you need to compile first and then upload, otherwise the latest compiled code will be uploaded.

g. Block simplification and feature extension

While the previous version of Facilino included many blocks, in this new version, we have included new blocks, updated existing ones and add shadow blocks to provide a hint on the type of input that a block expects.

In particular, from the toolbox, we can see now all blocks variations so the user can directly select the one that he/she is interested in (previously, only the default block aspect was shown, but now we show all of them). For instance, the arithmetic block operation that





included summation, subtraction, multiplication and division in a one single block, now it is shown as if they were four different blocks in the toolbox.

Also, on each input, we have added shadow blocks, which are default input values so that the user does not need to add by himself/herself. Of course, the user can change this default value to something which is more convenient for him/her, but in most of the cases, the default value serves as a hint to the user to know which kind of input is expected, but also as quick code generation, just by dragging few blocks.

We have updated, both the aspect and the code generated of some blocks, particularly those related with Bluetooth, because we have developed an App Inventor extension that is compatible with those blocks. Bluetooth-related blocks have also additional improvements. Among them, we can highlight the fact that now we can transmit and receive data between two ESP32 devices as long as one of them acts as master and the other one as slave. We have also created new blocks, such as HTTP REST API blocks to communicate WiFi devices with a mobile device via HTTP protocol. Another important block that has been modified that is widely used are blocks related to GLOBAL variables. Now, this block is simply added to the workspace, but not necessary in the setup as before. Since they are global variables, their definition is not link to either to "setup" or "loop" sections. In addition to this, PWM-related blocks have their own subcategory in the toolbox, which is easier to find them (before they were included in the Analog section).

We have also included many new blocks that were not included in the old version, such as servo motor attach/detach, ignore output, meArm-related blocks, HTU21D temperature/humidity sensor block,

h. Block filters

When creating a project, we can select the type of project we intend to work with, which affects to the block instruction set. For instance, a generic project will have all blocks available by default, while other type of projects will show by default only some categories. The following table summarizes the categories and subcategories shown for each type of project:

Category	Subcategory	Project type
Functions	-	All
	Flow Control	All
Control	Programming	Generic
Control	Interrupts	Generic
	State machine	Generic
Logio	-	All
LOGIC	Bitwise	Generic
	-	All
Math	Array	Generic
	Curve	Generic
	-	All
Variables	Array	Generic
	EEPROM	Generic







Text	-	All			
	Analog	All			
Decis 1/O	Digital	All			
	PWM	All			
Dasic I/O	Button	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation, LED			
		race			
	Bus	Generic			
	LCD 16x2	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			
Display	LED Matrix 8x8	Generic, DYOR			
Display	RGB LEDs	Generic, DYOR, bPED, HomeAutomation			
	OLED 128x32	Generic, DYOR, bPED			
	USB	All			
Communication	Bluetooth	All			
	WiFi	All			
	Infrared	All			
Light	Colour	Generic, DYOR, Multisensor, Home Automation			
Light	LDR	Generic, DYOR, Multisensor, Home Automati			
	Dimmer	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			
Distance	-	All			
	Buzzer	All			
Sound	Music	Generic, DYOR, bPED			
Sound	MP3/WAV	Generic, DYOR, bPED, Multisensor, Home			
		Automation			
	Motors	All			
	Robot base	Generic, DYOR			
Movement	Robot	Generic, DYOR			
wovernerit	accessories				
	Robot walk	Generic, bPED			
	Robot arm	Generic, mArm			
Sustam	Controller	Generic			
System	Filtering	Generic			
	Temperature	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			
	Humidity	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			
Environment	Rain	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			
	Gas	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			
	Miscellaneous	Generic, Multisensor, Home Automation			

i. Tutorial and Project-related Exercises

We have included a set of tutorials. The basic ones, have been fully integrated in the new version of Facilino, which includes now TinkerCAD simulations to reproduce the proposed exercises even without the need of programming the physical device. This basic exercises, have been designed to understand how to use specific block instructions. On every tutorial, it is explained which are the worked instructions and which are additional ones that will be used in the exercises. Every exercise includes a description and a hint on how to solve it and also includes the solution using Facilino code.







USB Serial Communication

Learn how to print to the console and read from the console with the USB serial interface.



Blinking LEDs

Learn how to work with digital inputs and outputs with Facilino to make LEDs blink,



Logic

Learn how to work with logic instructions with Facilino, including Boolean and bitwise operations.



Flow Control

Learn how to make decisions with 'IF' statements and repeat blocks of instructions with 'while' loops.



Functions and Procedures

Learn how to implement functions and procedures to reuse part of your code and call it at any part of your program.



Variables

Learn how to work with local and global variables and their types. Also learn how to work with array variables.



Maths

Learn how to use math instructions to perform arithmetic operations, minumum and maximum and even to generate a sinusoidal wave.



Text

Learn how to search, crop, append and compare text with Facilino.







RGB LEDs

Learn how to set the color of a RGB LED and dimm the light using PWM (analog write).



Digital Temperature and Humidity

Learn how to read temperature and humidity data from Facilino and set an alarm if temperatures or humidities are too high or too low.



Sound Buzzer

Learn how to generate predefined sounds, melodies and even melodies that run in a background task.



Infrared (IR) Receive

Learn how to receive IR codes from your IR remote controller to command 'orders' to your device.



Lyquid Cristal Display (LCD)

Learn how to print and scroll text to an LCD (/2C) screen with Faciline.



Light Dependent Resistor (LDR)

Learn how to read raw and colibrated values from an LDR sensor,



Also, we have created a set of exercises for specific projects.







LED Race

Compete to win a LED race while having fun and learn programming.



DYOR

Learn how to program a complete DIY robot with wheels.



bPED

Learn how to program a complete DIV walking robot.



meArm

Learn how to program a complete DIY robot arm.



EcoThings



EcoThings project: Everything you need to get you started instantly to control lights and temperature in home automation projects!



loT Starter Kit Intelligent Green House

Everything to get you started instantly to control temperature and humidityl



IoT Starter Kit Weather Station

Everything to get you started instantly to sense temperature. humidity, gas and rain!

As we can see, this is still a work-in-progress project and we hope to complete most of them by the end of 2023.

Here we can see a TinkerCAD circuit simulation which includes code generated by Facilino to reproduce a specific behaviour.





Set LED

At start up, set the LED connected to pin D12 HIGH (yes, we know, this is not very impressive, but its the beginning).

Hint:

Use the 'DigitalWrite' instruction and set the state to HIGH.

Setup Write digital Pl	N л (<mark>Гл Digital PIN (</mark>	D12 state HIGH			
Set LED	Start Simulation	Code		0	
•					
			-1		
			1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1		

Here is a list with the number of examples created so far:

	Basic Exercises	Intermediate Exercises
USB Serial Communication	5	2
Blinking LEDs	5	3
Logic	4	3
Flow Control	3	3
Functions and Procedures	4	3
Variables	4	3
Maths	4	3
Text	3	3







j. Translation tool

In order to provide a localization feature when using Facilino, we have included a translation tool that we hope it will help to translate Facilino into multiple languages. The basic idea of this tool is that a user applies for being part of the translation program, which means that he/she will be able to provide translations of specific texts, words and sentences that are used in Facilino and in their examples.

Based on previous contributors and an automated tool using Google translate services, Facilino has been already translated into other languages, but it needs to be revised. Thus, the translation tool asks a user to review/translate some text and he/she can modify it. Those translations will be reviewed by a second reviewer (and possibly more), and then confirmed added to the database.

To apply to the program, users must fill the following form:

🙍 Facilino Translate	(1. X. J. A.
Facilities TakeAak Se per and to construct the facility developed over the periods Married Region TakeAak Married Region Married Region Marri	
Nor showship with total collected; just in contribution; just in c	

Facilino Translate

An e-mail has been sent to the administrators with your application. Thank you for your interest in collaborating with the translation of Facilino

Continue

Once filled and they apply, the administrator receives an email with the form data:

Dear Administrator,

This email is to inform you that a Facilino translation request has been submitted. Please, accept or decline the application.

2000 III M000 MIII DODC - M000 MICOCH	
Username:	
Email: instantion and the management of	
Language: Español	
Academic: School	
Electronics: High Confident	
Block: High Confident	
Additional info:	
Accept	
Decline	

If you did not request to be a reviewer an inmediate action is required. Please, log into your account and change your security password as someone may have guessed it.





User Data

An e-mail has been sent to the user with your response.

Continue	
Dear Leopardia	
This enail is to infurn yo pending resilies, piccos,	oftat your facilities franklike request has keen anopping. We thank you is advance for your simplification, who you can banklike facilities with your rather language or researce peopling translations from other contribution. We will, everytable, every pass accept or decision the toxics. It is not an imagemention please, do not having to page 11.
# you did not request to t	in part of the Facilitis Toury, including action in required. Please, legitico your account and change your accurity assaured as sorecome may have guarant 4.
Thumks,	

Here, you can see and example of a key to be translated/reviewed:

Pacities Tainside Terreterie language Spaller			
The second secon			
Contraction of the second seco			
Read, and responded building:			
	There are	tearty ferrore and a	
been .			
Sectorement Sectorement Sectorement			

k. Over-the-air (OTA)

Facilino OTA can be used to program over-the-air devices such as ESP32 and ESP8266. This is a feature that allows programming a device without USB cable.

When creating a new project, we must select Facilino OTA in order to be able to use this feature:

	in the later of	Terms being	West set over het	1000
	Control and	Distance Comments	There are a second seco	1. Second
	Common Rev.	and the second sec	and the second sec	and the second sec
	Control advantage	And the second se		1. Present
	Chiese,			B were
	1 March 1997		Contract of Contra	The second se
	Constanting		1 Description of the	Transmission (
	there .		the second	Citement
	Conceptual and an end			(Transa
	Country Lineary			100
	Cline and the			
				Chemine .
				1000
				1746
				(Prime
				Diverse 1
				1 Press
				10 meters
and the second se		10000		
		and the second s		
I Mai I Ano		100,000 L 100		
The second state of the set of the second second state of the second sec				

I. Documentation

To be done.

Project





3. Dissemination and Impact

Since Facilino has suffered from lots of changes, we decided to have an operational version of it before disseminating with users that had used the previous version. However, during development, we have perform several dissemination activities for small groups of users:

- Santiago Apostol school has used the tool, during the academic year 2022/2023, with their students to start learning the basics of coding with simple exercises such as turning on a LED, both in a simulated environment using TinkerCAD and with actual electronics using Facilino OTA. As a consequence, the tool has been testes on kids aged 10-12 years old.
- 2) We have collaborated with a secondary school in Valencia, CE Marni, which is not part of this association, but they were willing to use this new version for some of their academic activities, because they were active users of the old version and decided to implement during the academic year 2022/2023. As a consequence, the tool has been tested on kids aged at 12-15 years old.
- 3) Leopoldo Armesto, has encouraged their university students to use this tool to provide code templates as part of an academic work assignment consisting of building a robot within a robotic course of the Industrial Electronics and Automation degree at the UPV. As a consequence, the tool has been tested on adults too, with the main purpose of generating code which they will adapt to their specific needs later on.
- 4) Sara Blanch and Leopoldo Armesto have co-tutorized two vocational students (Computer Science) performing an internship at the UPV, which have been also using this tool to generate code in order to complete their tasks assignments.

References

- [1] Blockly https://developers.google.com/blockly
- [2] Facilino (old version) https://roboticafacil.es/facilino/blockly/Facilino.html
- [3] Robótica Fácil https://roboticafacil.es